
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., September 21, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Thursday, September 14, 2023 
 2nd Printing – Tuesday, September 19, 2023 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – August 08, 2023   

 

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-021 .………………………………………………………….       1 - 3 

Resolution approving Above-Step Recruitment for the Accountant I 

Position (Fiscal Division) 

2.     Resolution No. FY2023-022.………………………………………………………….       4 - 6 

  Resolution amending the Public Housing (Property Site Manager) 

  Pay Schedule 

3.    Intent of Award ……………………………………………………………………………..     7 - 13 

 IFB#GHURA-23-CDBG-GPDESS; Guam Police Division Eastern  

 Sub Station 

4.    Intent of Award ……………………………………………………………………………..   14 - 17 

 IFB#GHURA-23-16; Renovation and Up-grade of Basketball Court, 

 Toto Gardens 
5.    Summary of Deputy Director, Board Evaluations …………………………..   18 - 54 

              6.    Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluations ……………………… 
7.  Resolution No. FY2023-023 .………………………………………………………….    55 - 95 

Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2024 Operating Budgets for  

Public Housing Asset Management Projects (AMP) GQ001000001, 

GQ001000002, GQ001000003, and GQ001000004 

8.  Resolution No. FY2023-024 .………………………………………………………….         96 

Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2024 Operating and 

Administrative Budget 

 

 



 

 

 

V.  OLD BUSINESS 

1.   Change Order #2 …………………………………………………………………………….       
                   IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-CDBG; Construction of a Lighthouse Recovery 
                   Center for Women in Tiyan, Guam 

2.  Resolution No. FY2023-TA-001 ………………………………………………………..    97 - 101 
                  Ratification of Resolution authorizing travel for attendance in the 
                  HUD-Sponsored Section 8 Administrator’s Meeting in Honolulu, Hawaii  
                  on September 8, 2023 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 

2. Division Updates    

                                                                                                                               

 VII.    GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, October 10, 2023 @ 12:00 

p.m.  

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 







GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 1 of 8 
 

       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., August 8, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board 
of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:02P.M., Tuesday, August 8, 2023, at the 
GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Vice Chairman Sanches. He indicated that 4 of 6 members 
of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 
 

Viewed 
virtually via 

Zoom:  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84037623065?pwd=M3VMMVhMeGxjNFZuNU4zbkdnak82QT09 

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                       Virtual   □             In-Person  □              
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual   □             In-Person  
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                                  Virtual               In-Person □   
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual   □           In-Person                 
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual   □             In-Person  
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual   □             In-Person □   
 
Chairman Rivera affirmed the requests of virtual attendance for the GHURA BOC meeting 

GHURA Staff  Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director         Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator □              
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director         Sonny Perez, AE Manager   
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                   Norma San Nicolas   
Frances Danieli, Controller □                              Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager □ 
Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner        Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager □ 
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator    Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager  
Antonio Camacho, Procurement SMA              Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager  
Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager □                        Jolyn Terlaje □ 
Nicole Alejandro                                                    Miguel Fernandez                
Michael Ricuyal                            
 
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig, GHURA’s Legal Counsel  
 

Public  
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Tuesday, August 1, 2023 

   2nd Printing – Sunday, August 6, 2023 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY VICE CHAIRMAN SANCHEZ 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84037623065?pwd=M3VMMVhMeGxjNFZuNU4zbkdnak82QT09
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag


GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 2 of 8 
 

 

III. Approval of Previous Board Minutes: GHURA BOC Mtg. Minutes, July 11, 2023 

 

[120/23] Commissioner Ishizaki moved to approve the board meeting minutes of 

July 11, 2023, subject to corrections. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. 

There were no objections. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IV. New Business: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. FY2023-
TA-001-Resolution 
authorizing travel for 
the attendance in the 
HUD-Sponsored Section 
8 Administrator’s 
Meeting in Honolulu, 
Hawaii on September 8, 
2023.  

[121/23] Executive Director Napoli 
requested to table new business item #1, 
Resolution No. FY-2023-TA-001, -
Resolution authorizing travel for the 
attendance in the HUD-Sponsored Section 
8 Administrator’s Meeting in Honolulu, 
Hawaii on September 8, 2023, until item is 
ready to be presented to the board.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[122/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez 
approved the request to table new 
business item #1. 

2. Intent of Award- 
IFB#GHURA-23-15- Isla 
Apartment 
Improvement  

[123/23] Executive Director Napoli stated 
the following: 

• Bid opening for the project was 
held on July 27, 2023, at 2P.M. 

• A total of 2 contractors purchased 
a set of bid specifications. 

• 2 contractors submitted bids: 
o Genesis Tech Corporation 

submitted Bid Bond of 
15% and for Base Bid #1-
$173,000.00. 

o O.H. Construction 
submitted a Bid Bond of 
15% and for Base Bid #1-
$107,000.00. 

• The Government Estimate was at 
$159,545.88. 

• The Intent of Award is to make 
improvements to Isla Apartments 
per scope of work provided.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 3 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• In review of the bid results, O.H. 
Construction had provided the 
lowest responsive and responsible 
bid.  

• O.H. Construction had completed 
several GHURA projects with good 
standing. 

• O.H. Construction had been 
cleared by the Department of 
Labor, OSHA, and EPLS Debarred 
List.  

• Based on the AE Staff’s review and 
determination, GHURA requested 
to the approval to issue the 
contract to O.H. Construction for 
the total amount of $107,875.00.  

• Funding available under the 
HOMES Program 

Vice Chairman Sanchez indicated that a 
correction be made on page 1 of 8. The 
'HOMES Program’ is to be added to the 
last paragraph of the Intent of Award 
memorandum.  

Mr. Elesio Florig, Legal Counsel, 
recommended that the additional dollar 
sign on the Government estimate be 
removed.  

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about 
whether O.H. Construction had a history 
of submitting low bids and change orders. 
Mr. Michael Racuyal, AE engineer, stated 
that AE opens bids to the public. Price 
ranges vary for materials and supplies. 
However, AE does make certain that 
contractors do meet all bid specifications 
such as the values, support work and 
quantities. This helps AE staff determine 
whether a contractor has the ability to 
complete the scope of work provided and 
quality of work is not compromised.  

Deputy Director Esteves added that it was 
not uncommon for contractors to 
purchase materials in bulk, at a good price 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 4 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

and use them in other projects, it may 
make them more competitive.  

 

There were no further discussions.  

 

 

[124/23] Commissioner Delia moved 
to approve IFB #GHURA-23-15, Isla 
Apartment Improvements to O.H. 
Construction in the amount of 
$107,875.00. 

Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the 
motion. There were no objections. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

V. V. OLD BUSINESS 

VI.  

Change Order #1- 

IFB#08-25-2022-AMP4; 

Replacement of AMPR 4 

Maintenance Shop 

Extension.  

 

[125/23] Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Change Order #1-IFB#08-25-
2022 is for the replacement of 
the shop extension. 

• Genesis Tech Corporation had 
an ongoing contract for the 
replacement of the 
maintenance shop extension.  

• AE Staff conducted a site visit 
to AMP4 for input following a 
Change Order Request from 
the contractor. 

• Upon assessment, AE Staff 
concluded a need for additional 
work. 

• Original Contract amount was 
$108,000. 

• Cost analysis and Justification 
was found on page 7 of 8 in the 
August 8, 2023, BOC packet.  

 

Mr. Sonny Perez, provided more 
information: 

• A Floor plan of the AMP4 
Maintenance Shop extension 
was found on page 6 of 8 in the 
BOC packet. 

• The project is a design build. 
GHURA had prepared the 
specifications for this project. 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 5 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• The change order was a result 
of Electrical PE’s 
recommendation. 

• #1 on the floor plan- was of an 
existing panel board that had 
deteriorated. Recommendation 
was to replace it.  

• #2 on the floor plan- Grounding 
rod installation was in need of 
upgrade due to the additional 
load to the building. 

• #3 on the floor plan- a new line 
that will be connected from the 
main panel, located at the from 
the front of the building and 
will run to the back of the 
building. This will also include 
new wiring. 

• #4- Demolishing and infilling 
with reinforced concrete- 
remove existing blocks and 
install rebars for reinforcement, 
put up forms, and add concrete to 

prevent water from entering. PE 
recommended. 

• #5- Proposed drainage lines- 
Water gets into the building 
during rain. This will assist with 
water drainage.  

• #6- Demo of existing wall to 
prepare for new metal double 
door to connect to the extension 
from the office.  

• #7- Removal/Disposal of (2) 40 
ft. Containers- upon inspection, 
containers were deemed to 
have deteriorated beyond 
reasonable economic repair. 
Owner had requested to have 
the containers removed.  

Vice Chairman Sanchez inquired 
about the project’s schedule of 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 6 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

completion. Mr. Sonny Perez 
indicated that it would take 120 
days to complete.  

 

 

 

  

[126/23] Commissioner Ishizaki 
moved to approve IFB#GHURA-
08-02-2022, AMP4 Replacement 
of Maintenance Shop Extension 
in the amount of $19, 980.00. 
Commissioner Delia seconded the 
motion. The motion was passed 
unanimously.  

2. Change Order #2- 
IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-
CDBG; Construction of the 
Lighthouse Recovery Center 
for Women in Tiyan, Guam. 

[127/23] Director Napoli requested to 
have item #2 IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-
CDB; Construction of the Lighthouse 
Recovery Center for Women in Tiyan, 
Guam tabled as the item was still 
under review.  

[128/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez 
approved the request to have 
Change Order #2, IFB#GHURA-09-
26-2019-CDBG, tabled until ready 
to be presented to the board.  

VI. Executive     

Director’s Report 

 

[129/23] 1. WOMEN’S TREATMENT 
CENTER UPDATE: 
Mr. Sonny Perez, AE Manager, stated 
the following: 

• Progress pictures as of August 
7, 2023 were presented. 

• Project is at 76% complete 

• Tracking for project 
completion is September 30. 

• Pending occupancy permit 

• Second floor-currently working 
on interior 

• H Vac ducting has been 
installed. 

• Once H Vac and windows are 
installed it will be ready for 
occupancy. 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 7 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

[130/23] 2. DIVISION UPDATES: 

Director Napoli stated the following: 

• 2024 GHURA Budget-at the 
August BOC meeting, GHURA 
intends to present the budget 
before the board at the next 
board meeting of September 
12, 2023, as the FISCAL division 
continues to work on it. 

• Reminder to attend the Board 
Ethics training presented by Ms. 
Lora Han from HUD Honolulu on 
August 24, 2023. 

• Deputy Director Esteves add that 
Section 8 was awarded another 
(5) HCVs for the upcoming fiscal 
year. 

• He also added that GHURA had 
submitted a grant application for 
the Family Unification Program 
(FUP) for 16 vouchers and await a 
response.   

VII. General 

Discussions/ 

Announcements 

[131/23] 1. HR ITEM: Executive 
Management’s Performance 
Evaluations for: 
 
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin indicated that 
the Performance Evaluations for 
Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli 
and Deputy Director Fernando B, 
Esteves were due and stated the 
following:  
 

• Executive Director Napoli’s PE 
was due on or before July 8, 
2023 (Annual Evaluation) 

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. 
Esteves, due on or before July 
28, 2023 (Annual Evaluation) 

• She added that the PEs were 
due and requested that the 
evaluations be submitted as 
soon as possible.  

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 8, 2023                                                                                     Page 8 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• She also added that she 
welcomed any 
recommendations that the 
board may have to make the 
Performance Evaluation process 
better.  

There were no further discussions.  

[132/23] 2. Next proposed scheduled 
Board Meeting:  

TUESDAY, SEPEMBER 12, 2023 @ 12P.M.  

Vice Chairman Sanchez requested that 
commissioners who are unable to attend 
the next BOC meeting send notice 48 to 
72 hours in advance.  

 

VIII. Adjournment 

 

 

 [133/23] Commissioner Delia moved 
to adjourn the August 8, 2023 
GHURA BOC meeting. Commissioner 
Rice seconded the motion. Vice 
Chairman Sanchez called to adjourn 
at 12:54P.M. 

 

SEAL 

 

              ______________________________ 
        Elizabeth F. Napoli 
        Board Secretary/Executive Director 
   
        Date __________________________ 

    



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-021 

 
 
 
Moved by:                              Seconded by:    ______________________                               
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ABOVE-STEP RECRUITMENT FOR THE ACCOUNTANT I  
POSITION 

 
WHEREAS, Under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, its Board of 

Commissioners is empowered “to employ officers, technical experts, agents and 
employees, permanent and temporary as it may deem necessary; and shall 
determine their qualifications, duties, tenure and compensation...”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Title 4 of the Guam Code Annotated, “…The appointing authority, or the head of 

an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4 GCA,§4105(a) may 
petition the Director of Administration, the Judicial Council (as to Judicial Branch 
employment) or the agency, department or public corporation’s governing board 
or commission (as to an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4GCA 
§4105(a)) for recruitment at a higher step not to exceed Step 10, because of 
documented difficulty or exceptional qualifications……”; and 

 
WHEREAS,   on 08/04/2023, Ms. Sunny Eun Cho was selected to the Accountant I position and 

submitted her request to Executive Management requesting the GHURA Board 
of Commissioners review and approval of an above  the minimum step 
recruitment for the classified position of Accountant I based on exceptional 
qualifications; and 

 
WHEREAS,  executive management and the board recognizes that above step recruitments is a 

tool for positions that are difficult to recruit for and for those with exceptional 

qualifications; and 

 

WHEREAS,  given the fact that Accountant positions are in demand, and are difficult to recruit 
for, Ms. Cho makes a compelling argument for an above step recruitment based 
on her exceptional qualifications even at the Accountant I position level 
classification; and. 

 

WHEREAS, the exceptional qualifications that Ms. Cho possesses for the Accountant I 
position, beyond the required bachelor’s degree, consist of the following: 

 

Accounting specialty with Audit Firms and Louis Vuitton Stores- 2 years 
experience: 

• Assisted with Financial statements; 

• Performed field audit at different audit firms at Grant Thorton and Deloitte 
& Touche; 

• Daily sales reconciliation; 

• Monthly journal entry; 

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 1 of 101



 

• Assisted in monthly closing to meet the company’s Hong Kong 
headquarters deadline; and  

• Internal audit assurance practice. 
 

Accounting duties along with Management Positions at various hotel 
companies – 7 years of experience: 

• Compiled room and revenue data; 

• Forecast three months of room and revenue;  

• Provide end of month room type analysis for revenue; 

• Prepared and proposed budget for resident room revenues; and 

• Created special room promotions. 
 
 

  WHEREAS,  other supporting factors to pursue an above step recruitment at the Accountant   
level were: 

 
1) Division Manager’s concurrence that she is a seasoned Accountant I with 

over 9 years of work experience in the accounting field (2 years specific 
to accounting and 7 years in accounting/management level duties); and 

2) The HR recruitment data has shown recently, GHURA seems to only 
attract applicants coming straight out of college; and 

3) Fiscal team anticipates the retirement of their seasoned Accountant I to 
occur in fiscal year 2024 or 2025; and 

4) With the government of Guam moving the compensation this April 2023, it 
has caused even more of a recruitment challenge, as GHURA now falls 
even lower behind the compensation of government employees.  A 
review of the 22% increase now has the Accountant I at DOA starting with 
a pay of $44,520.00, which will be in line with her request; and  

5) Notwithstanding, the GHURA Board of Commissioners requested in 
December 2022, that HR report back to them with an updated 
compensation plan in order for GHURA to recruit and retain its 
employees.  It is noted that moving the compensation plan will help 
reduce the number of requests for above step recruitments; and  

6) It is HR’s recommendation based on above considerations and market 
conditions, to support the petition to the Board of Commissioners for 
review and approval of Ms. Sunny Cho, Accountant I to Step LG4-5(D) 
$45,287.00 p/annum or $21.77 per hour; and     

 
WHEREAS, since GHURA HR has now completed the required disclosures and transparency 

requirements as stipulated in 4GCA, Section 6205, Executive Management now 
seeks the GHURA Board of Commissioners for an above the minimum step 
recruitment for the Accountant I based on exceptional qualifications; and 

 

WHEREAS, Management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits (i.e. 
retirement, holidays, annual/sick leave etc.) to Step 5, is fair and now respectfully 
requests an above step recruitment of Ms. Sunny E. Cho, LG4-5(D), $45,287.00 
pa; $21.77 p/hr; and   

 
WHEREAS, the GHURA Board recognizes it has the discretionary authority to go below or 

beyond management’s recommendations (i.e., LG4-2(A), $36,917.00 p/a; $17.75 

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 2 of 101



p/hr through LG4-10(F), $61,781.00 p/a; $29.70 p/hr - maximum), but supports 
management’s request for the above-step recruitment; and 

 
WHEREAS, Funding for this position is available from COCC Funds; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED, that in consideration of the applicant’s exceptional knowledge and experience, 
the GHURA Board of Commissioners grants the above-step requirement for:  
 

Ms. Sunny Eun Cho, Accountant I LG4-5(D), $45,287.00 p/a; $21.77 p/hr; 
  

 
 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:  
NAYES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  

 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board of 
Commissioners on September 21, 2023. 
 
 
 

SEAL    ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
    Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 3 of 101



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-022 

 
 
 
Moved by:  Seconded by:           

 
RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PUBLIC HOUSING (PROPERTY SITE MANAGER) PAY 
SCHEDULE 
 
 
WHEREAS, under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA its Board of 

Commissioners is empowered to employ “…technical experts, such other 
officers, agents and employees, permanent and temporary, as it may deem 
necessary; and shall determine their qualifications, duties, tenure and 
compensation…”; and 

 
WHEREAS, recognizing the need to remain competitive, the Board of Commissioners on 

5/11/2011 set forth and adopted an updated Personnel Rules and Regulations 
that is consistent with merit principles and principles of Equal Employment 
Opportunity and other laws pertaining to employment in the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2011 Personnel Rules and Regulations included separate pay schedules 

for the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority, and  
 
WHEREAS, in January 2020, the Board of Commissioners recognized the need to create a 

separate pay scale for the Property Site Managers as the starting pay back 
then caused retention and recruitment challenges for this critical management 
position; and  

 
WHEREAS, on July 11, 2023, the Board of Commissioners approved the creations for 

several key housing positions, such as the Housing Procurement Administrator 
as well as amending the Property Site Manager’s position;  

 
WHEREAS, GHURA completed the required compliance filings with the Guam Legislature 

and the Department of Administration for the creations and amendment of 
positions, respectively, and 

 
WHEREAS, executive management now respectfully requests the Board of Commissioners 

to amend the Public Housing, Property Site Manager’s pay schedule to now 
read the 2023 Pay Schedule for Housing Management Personnel (attached), 
which includes an implementation slotting that addresses internal equity issues 
and/or for incumbent managers who fall below the new starting pay; and 

 
WHEREAS, if approved, this Pay Schedule will incorporate both the Housing Procurement 

Administrator and the Property Site Manager as they are now both the same 
Pay Grades (Pay Grade “P”);  

 
WHEREAS, funding to implement the new pay schedule are from COCC and public housing 

funds incorporated in the FY2023 Budget; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes the need to retain qualified individuals 

in GHURA’s Housing leadership positions; and now therefore be it  

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 4 of 101



 
RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners hereby adopts the “Guam Housing and Urban 

Renewal Authority (GHURA) – Pay Schedule for the Housing Management 
Personnel which includes an adjustment slotting to address internal equity 
issues and/or for the incumbent Managers who positions fall below the starting 
salary. 

 
 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:    
NAYS: 
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly adopted by the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 
Authority Board of Commissioners 
on September 21, 2023. 

 
 
( S E A L ) ______________________________ 

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
Secretary / Executive Director 

 

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 5 of 101



G
R

A
D

E
Su

b
st

e
p

-A
Su

b
st

e
p

-B
Su

b
st

e
p

-C
Su

b
st

e
p

-D
Su

b
st

e
p

-E
Su

b
st

e
p

-F

P
H

3
$

7
3

,5
9

9
$

7
4

,3
0

6
$

7
5

,0
1

4
$

7
6

,5
1

4
$

7
5

,7
6

4
$

7
7

,2
6

4

$
3

5
.3

8
$

3
5

.7
2

$
3

6
.0

6
$

3
6

.4
3

$
3

6
.7

9
$

3
7

.1
5

Su
b

st
e

p
-A

Su
b

st
e

p
-B

Su
b

st
e

p
-C

Su
b

st
e

p
-D

Su
b

st
e

p
-E

Su
b

st
e

p
-F

$
7

8
,0

1
5

$
7

8
,7

6
4

$
7

9
,5

1
5

$
8

0
,3

1
0

$
8

1
,1

0
5

$
8

1
,9

0
0

$
3

7
.5

1
$

3
7

.8
7

$
3

8
.2

3
$

3
8

.6
1

$
3

8
.9

9
$

3
9

.3
7

St
e

p
 1

St
e

p
 2

2
0

2
3

 G
H

U
R

A
 P

ay
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
) 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
er

so
n

n
el

   
   

[G
ra

d
e 

"P
" 

St
ep

-1
A

]

$
7

3
,5

9
9

/p
a 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
3

5
.3

8
/h

r

$
7

3
,5

9
9

/p
a 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
3

5
.3

8
/h

r

P
R

O
P

ER
TY

 S
IT

E 
M

A
N

A
G

ER
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 P
R

O
C

U
R

EM
EN

T 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

2
0

2
2

 G
H

U
R

A
 P

ay
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 (
C

u
rr

e
n

t)
 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
er

so
n

n
el

   
   

   
 

[G
ra

d
e 

"O
" 

St
e

p
-1

A
]

P
o

si
ti

o
n

 T
it

le

$
6

9
,4

3
3

/p
a 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$
3

3
.3

8
/h

r

$
4

8
,3

9
2

/p
a 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
2

3
.2

7
/h

r

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 6 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 7 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 8 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 9 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 10 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 11 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 12 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 13 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 14 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 15 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 16 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 17 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 18 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 19 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 20 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 21 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 22 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 23 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 24 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 25 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 26 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 27 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 28 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 29 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 30 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 31 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 32 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 33 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 34 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 35 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 36 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 37 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 38 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 39 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 40 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 41 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 42 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 43 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 44 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 45 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 46 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 47 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 48 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 49 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 50 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 51 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 52 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 53 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 54 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 55 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 56 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 57 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 58 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 59 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 60 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 61 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 62 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 63 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 64 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 65 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 66 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 67 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 68 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 69 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 70 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 71 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 72 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 73 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 74 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 75 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 76 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 77 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 78 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 79 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 80 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 81 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 82 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 83 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 84 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 85 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 86 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 87 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 88 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 89 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 90 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 91 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 92 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 93 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 94 of 101



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
Aturidat Ginima Yan Rinueban Suidat Guahan 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Resolution No. FY2023-023 

 
 

 
Moved by:         Seconded by:         

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 OPERATING BUDGETS FOR PUBLIC 
HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT PROJECTS (AMP) GQ001000001, GQ001000002, 
GQ001000003 AND GQ001000004. 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) entered into a Consolidated Annual Contributions Contract, ACC 
Number SF-272 dated March 27, 1967; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority administers HUD’s Low Rent Public Housing Program, which is 

subsidized by HUD, through its Operating Fund; and  
 
 WHEREAS, HUD, with the implementation of 990.255 of the Operating Fund final rule, 

requires public housing authorities to implement project-based management, 
project-based budgeting and project-based accounting, and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority, in anticipation of the aforementioned requirement, has 

grouped its housing developments into Asset Management Programs (AMPs),  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Fiscal Year 2024 AMP budgeted expenditures are necessary in 

the efficient and economical operations of the AMPs for the purpose of serving 
low-income residents; therefore, be it 

 
RESOLVED, that the FY 2024 AMP operating budgets for the Authority’s Asset 

Management Projects GQ001000001, GQ001000002, GQ001000003 and 
GQ001000004 are hereby approved. 

 
  
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING AT SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:  
AYES:         
NAYES:          
ABSENT:            
ABSTAINED:          
 
 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and 
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 
Board of Commissioners on September 21, 2023. 
 

(SEAL) 
________________________________________ 
ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
Secretary / Executive Director  

   

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 95 of 101



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

Aturidat Ginima Yan Rinueban Suidat Guahan 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Resolution No. FY2023-024 

 

 

Moved by:      Seconded by:    

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 OPERATING AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET. 

 

WHEREAS, the Authority must continue its primary mission to provide safe, 

decent and sanitary housing to the people of Guam in Fiscal Year 

2024; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Authority must ensure the continued operation of the Public and 

Indian Housing, Housing Choice Voucher, Supportive Housing for 

the Elderly and community development programs; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority must ensure the continued payment of personnel 

salaries, benefits and other administrative expenditures for Fiscal 

Year 2024; and  

 

WHEREAS, to allow the Authority the flexibility for addressing situational needs 

to meet its mission, provide transfer authority of 10% to the 

Executive Director, within the total budget, and keep the Chairman 

of the Board apprised of such transfers; therefore be it 

 

RESOLVED, that the FY 2024 Operating and Administrative budget is hereby 

approved. 

   

 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING AT SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:  

AYES:                  

NAYES:          

ABSENT:             

ABSTAINED:      

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 

true and correct copy of a Resolution duly 

adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban 

Renewal Authority Board of 

Commissioners on September 21, 2023. 
(SEAL) 

__________________________________ 

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

Secretary / Executive Director  

 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 96 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 97 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 98 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 99 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 100 of 101



 
Board Meeting of September 21, 2023

 
PAGE 101 of 101


	IOA; GHURA-23-02-CDBG-GPDESS.pdf
	GHURA-23-02-CDBG-GPDESS; MEMO for Approval
	GHURA-23-02-CDBG-GPDESS; Bid Tabulation
	GHURA-23-02-CDBG-GPDESS; Contractor Clearances
	GHURA-23-02-CDBG-GPDESS; Cost Estimate
	PBEval_IFBG-23-02_CDBG-GPDESS_r2

	IOA, Toto Gardens Basketball Court.pdf
	Memo to Board for Approval
	GHURA-23-16; Bid Tabulation
	DOC010
	GHURA-23-16; Government Cost Estimate




